#### **NOTICE OF MEETING**

#### SHEBOYGAN COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

March 28, 2024

3:00 P.M.

Administration Building 508 New York Ave Sheboygan WI 53081 Room 302

Remote Access: +1 319-449-2791

**Meeting ID:** 132 874 572#

Virtual: meet.google.com/xjh-eruh-vdx

Members of the Committee may be appearing remotely. Persons wanting to observe the meeting are encouraged to listen remotely.

#### \*AGENDA\*

Call to Order

Certification of Compliance with Open Meeting Law

Correspondence

Approval of Minutes for the February 29, 2024 Executive Committee Meeting

Consideration of Resolution No. 27 - Authorizing the Finance Committee and Finance Director to Balance Over Budget Departmental Accounts

Consideration of Resolution No. 28 - Purchase of Commercial Hangars (Part of Parcel No. 59026-384630)

Consideration of Ordinance No. 16 - Amending Chapter 12 - County Emergency Medical Services Council

Consideration of Amendments to County Code – Chapter 2

County Administrator's Report

(The County Administrator's Report is a summary of key activities. No action will be taken by the Executive Committee resulting from the report, unless it is a specific item on the agenda.)

Consideration and Approval of Attendance at Other Meetings/Functions

**Review and Approve Vouchers** 

Next Meeting Date: To Be Determined

Adjournment

Prepared by: Peggy Osthelder Recording Secretary

Vern Koch Committee Chairperson

NOTE: Members of the public are invited to offer comments on topics which may or may not appear on the Agenda, and Committee members may discuss such matters, but no action may be taken by the Committee on non-Agenda topics. Individual speakers may be limited to no more than five minutes.

A majority of the members of the County Board of Supervisors or of any of its committees may be present at this meeting to listen, observe and participate. If a majority of any such body is present, their presence constitutes a "meeting" under the Open Meeting Law as interpreted in State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553 (1993), even though the visiting body will take no action at this meeting.

If listed as an agenda item, the "Administrator's Report" is a summary of key activities for the previous month and planned for upcoming months including performance evaluations, liaison committee issues and County Board issues. No action will be taken by the Executive committee resulting from the report unless it is a specific item on the agenda.

Persons with disabilities needing assistance to attend or participate are asked to notify the County Board Chairman/County Administrator's Office at 920-459-3103 prior to the meeting so that accommodations may be arranged.

#### SHEBOYGAN COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES

Administration Building 508 New York Ave Sheboygan, WI 53081 Room 302

February 29, 2024 Called to Order: 3:00 PM Adjourned: 4:09 PM

MEMBERS PRESENT: Vernon Koch, Keith Abler, William Goehring, Curt Brauer, and Edward

Procek

ALSO PRESENT: Supervisor Tom Wegner, Supervisor Jerry Jorgensen, Crystal Fieber,

Bryan Olson, Alayne Krause, and Peggy Osthelder

Chairman Koch called the meeting to order at 3:00 PM. Peggy Osthelder certified compliance with the open meeting law. The meeting notice was posted at 1:30 PM on February 27, 2024.

There was no correspondence to present to the Committee.

Supervisor Goehring made a motion to approve the minutes of the January 25, 2024 Executive Committee Meeting. Motion seconded by Supervisor Brauer. Motion carried.

The Committee discussed Resolution No. 25 - Approving Municipal Access, Storm Sewer, Lighting, Camera & Safety Equipment Easement with Village of Elkhart Lake. Transportation Director Bryan Olson gave an overview and answered questions. Supervisor Abler made a motion to approve the resolution. Motion seconded by Supervisor Procek. Motion carried.

The Committee reviewed the 4<sup>th</sup> Quarter Variance Reports. County Administrator Alayne Krause gave an overview and answered questions. Supervisor Procek made a motion to approve the Reports. Motion seconded by Supervisor Goehring. Motion carried.

The Committee discussed Fire and Emergency Medical Services Study. County Board Chairman Vern Koch gave an overview and answered questions. No action was taken.

The Committee discussed American Rescue Plan Act Subrecipient Reports. County Administrator Alayne Krause gave an overview and answered questions. No action was taken.

County Administrator Alayne Krause provided an update on the opioid settlement funding and the January sales tax revenue. Administrator Krause is working with Transportation Director Bryan Olson and Finance Director Steve Hatton to develop a seven-year sales tax review to present at an upcoming County Board meeting. Administrator Krause also collaborated with Corporation Counsel and the Sheboygan County Economic Development Corporation (SCEDC) to finalize the Request for Proposal to develop housing at the UW-Green-Bay, Sheboygan Campus. Additionally, Administrator Krause reported that the County's Fixed Base Operator, Lake Breeze Aviation, at the Sheboygan County Memorial Airport has been open for one month. Customer feedback has been positive, and there has been an increase in flight operations since the opening of Lake Breeze Aviation. Administrator Krause also reported on preparations for the upcoming County Board elections, the implementation of Act 4 for County correctional officers, and the development of an updated salary proposal for the elected

County Clerk, Register of Deeds, and Treasurer. Further, Administrator Krause reported on attendance at recent meetings and events such as the annual Chamber Champions Gala, a meeting with the Bookworm Gardens Executive Director discuss their expansion plans, a meeting with the United Way Executive Director to discuss partnership, a kickoff meeting for the Chamber's workforce attraction campaign, and a meeting with Discover Wisconsin to discuss a potential partnership. Administrator Krause also presented at a meeting of the noon Rotary Club and has a few upcoming presentations scheduled for other local organizations.

Supervisor Procek made a motion to go into closed session at 3:41 pm pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(1)(c) to consider the annual performance evaluation of the County Administrator. Motion seconded by Supervisor Brauer. Motion carried on a unanimous roll call vote.

Supervisor Abler made a motion to go into open session at 3:57 pm. Motion seconded by Supervisor Goehring. Motion carried on a unanimous roll call vote.

Supervisor Brauer made a motion to approve the annual performance and forward on to the Human Resources Department. Motion seconded by Supervisor Abler. Motion carried.

Supervisor Goehring requested attendance to the 4<sup>th</sup> Opioid Abatement Summit in Wisconsin Rapids on March 20, 2024. Supervisor Brauer moved to approve the request. Motioned seconded by Supervisor Procek. Motion carried.

Vouchers were reviewed. Supervisor Abler made a motion to approve the vouchers. Motion seconded by Supervisor Brauer. Motion carried.

The next Executive Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, March 28, 2024 at 3:00 PM.

Supervisor Brauer made a motion to adjourn. Motion seconded by Supervisor Goehring. Motion carried.

Peggy Osthelder, Recording Secretary

William Goehring, Secretary

# COMMITTEE REPORT TO THE COUNTY BOARD

WE,	THE	EXECUTIVE	<b>=</b>	COMMITTEE
Т	O WHOM WAS REFERRED R	RESOLUTION N	O: <b>27</b>	
RE:	Authorizing the Finance Co Over Budget Departmental		nance Director	to Balance
HAVE	CONSIDERED THE SAME A	ND RECOMMEN	ND:	
	ADDITIONAL TIME THE RESOLUTION FILING WITH THE C	BE ADOPTED CLERK		HE MATTER
RESF	PECTFULLY SUBMITTED THIS	S 9th	DAY OF	April 2024
	EXE	CUTIVE CO	MMITTEE	
<u>OPP</u>	OSED TO THE REPORT:		CONCURRII	NG IN THE REPORT:
VERN	ION KOCH		VERNON KO	CH
KEITI	H ABLER		KEITH ABLE	3
WILL	IAM C. GOEHRING		WILLIAM C. C	GOEHRING
CURT	BRAUER		CURT BRAUE	ER .
EDW	ARD PROCEK		EDWARD PR	OCEK

1 2	SHEBOYGAN COUNTY RESOLUT	ΠΟΝ ΝΟ. <u>Ä /</u> (2023/24)
3 4 5	Re: Authorizing the Finance Committe Over Budget Departmental Accoun	e and Finance Director to Balance nts
6 7 8 9	WHEREAS, it is anticipated that there may which will be over budget for 2023 due to unexpect other expense or revenue accounts which are unde	
11 12 13 14	WHEREAS, while the exact amount of the books for 2023 have been closed, the approximate this Resolution and represent, in total for all funds, t	
15 16 17 18	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED to appropriation units, "Salaries and Benefits," Charges," and "Capital Outlay" are hereby authorized	
19 20 21 22	<b>BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED</b> that after the Committee and Finance Director report to this Courvariances reported here.	he books are closed for 2023 the Finance ity Board any significant differences from the
23 24 25 26	Respectfully submitted this 19th day of Marc	h, 2024.
27	FINANCE COM	MITTEE
28 29 30 31 32 33	Roger L. TeStroete, Chairperson William & Derrum	Kuthleen Bonuran Kathleen Donovan, Vice-Chairperson
34 35 36 37 38		Keith Abler  Thomas Wegner
39 40 41 42	Opposed to Intro	oduction:
43 44 45 46		
47 48 49	R:\CLIENT\08299\00012\00073152.DOC	February 28, 2024, draft

Budget Comparisons - 2023
Appropriation Units

									Appropriation Units	on Units											
	Department	Budgel	Revenue Actual	Variance	Wag	Wages & Benefits Actual	Variance	Operating Budget Act	Expenses	Variance	Interdepa Budget Ac	Interdepartmental Actual Van	Variance Var	Operational Variance B	Capital Budget Aci	Capital Outlay Actual Variance	8	Other Financing (Sources) Uses Budget Actual Varia	ig (Sources) Us Actual Va	90	Total
Fund Dept																				-	
181	Treasurer	756,692	115,108	44,619	5 428,829	424,888	3.941 \$	135,290 \$		\$ 126	204,831 \$	168,635 \$		85.713 \$	102,820 \$	21,546 \$ 8	81.274 \$	(115,078) \$	(20.680) \$ (	(94,398) \$	72,589
	ROD	698,085	640,621	(57,464)	\$ 415,714	399,769	-	142,685	u u		00	202,660 \$	(\$50 P	344 206	n u	00		40	•	4	307.25
	IW Shebovoan	111 609	111,609	+10,00	E10'000'1 S	po r'one'i		80.033 \$	·		, 0,	31,831 \$	255) \$	(30,587) \$	00			. 50	**	s	(30,587
100 185	Medical Examiner	301,988	311,943	9,955	147,227	141,829		129,324 \$	s		s	S	s	22,166 \$	S	s -	69			6	22,166
	County Board	230,280	235,441	5,161	147,208	139,347	7,861   \$	85,056 \$	s		y)	us o	0	60,195	31			(38,700) \$			21,49
	Co Airport	1,007,234	735,316	(271.918)	250,935	276,326	-	832,945 5	00		AU	00	2 17 5	13 248 8	30,317		00.00			9 64	13 345
191	Clerk of Cits	S 265,332 5	3 009,340 5	48.290	5 1404119 5		95 031   5	953.175 \$	1.514.248 \$	(561.073) \$	) v)	o so	319 5	269,433) \$	1		1			1	(269.43.
	DA	1,050,689	1,061,240	10,551	\$ 773,866	715,163		91,352 \$	69		S	s	s	\$   209'86	\$ .	\$ .	S	· .			98,602
	UW Extension	434,534	431,558	(2,976)	5 107,629	105,227		248.875 \$	s		s	w	254 5	S	so.	· A	s.	s	4	6	10,77
	Co Planning	2,496,230	2,530,263	34,033	5 1,120,245	1,079,543	-	917,239 \$	w		, n	<b>S</b>	50	•					\$ (509,12)		(80.60
	Sheriff	23,622,946	23,852,796	239,850	L9788161	16,471,436		3,351,633 3	00		00	96	0000	00	9 4	00	90		9.4		100 001
	County Clerk	382,867	391,334	8,46/	130,224	020 030	104 567 6	1 530 710 5	• 0		, ,		, ,	474 506 5			68 265 \$	(75 810) S	0		488 96
	Bidg Services	3,009,303	700 443	107	500 411	366 338		170 SUS C	, ,				847 5	177 957   5	0	· v	-	(99.261) \$	(62,976) \$		141.67
	Metacoor' Con	328 160	340.626	12 466		212 074		20.369 \$	·		v		(3)	715 \$			· ·		49	69	71
	Nondepart	6 326 004	0 043 734	3 717 74G			-	2 126 425 5			u			3.040.279   \$	9	s ·	3	403,198 \$ 2	2,791,000 \$ 6	612,198 \$ 3	3,652,47
	Vaterane' Comm	20 812	20 812		2 148	•	2 148 5	18,622 \$	S		49				1	10		5	49		2,35
	Corp Counsel	597.008	606,718 \$	9,710	132,573	136,773	(4.200)  \$	438,837 \$	438,570 \$	267 \$	25,598 \$	8,569 \$	17,029 \$	22,806 \$	59	s -	5	s -	s -	ss ·	22,806
	County Administrator	395,772	395,738	(34)	402,720	205,385		14,070 \$	8,970 \$	5,100 \$	75,624 \$	23,779 \$	845	254,246 \$	\$ -	\$ .		(96,642) \$	. \$	(96,642) \$	157.60
ŗ	Total - Ganaral Eurol	c 47 430 566 ¢	51 350 575 \$	3 920 009	\$ 25843034 \$	2 858 528 5	384 506 5	\$ 975 201 51		(823,810) \$ 7	7.447.152 \$ 6.	6.823.818 \$ 6	623.334 \$ 4.	4.104.039   \$	982.288 \$ 93	920,756   \$ 6	61.532 \$ 1.	851,866 \$ 1	1,588,303 \$ 2	263,563 \$ 4	4.429.134
-	Din - 00100 at 1 0100	200,000	200000	200			+						L				-				
	Special Revenue		1												100 Co. 100 Co	Contract Contract				100000	200 640 61
200	Community Programs	5 16,777,399 5	14 263 581 5	528,806	04		(21647) 5	349 501 5	15,821,037 5 (2.	160.293 S	(1.829.025) \$ (1.1	(1.818.136) \$ (	(10.889)  \$ (13.	128.294   \$	n 69	• •	200	o vo	2 60	9 60	128.29
	Office on Aging	2,780,229	2,730,527	(49,702)	5 1,723,861	1,542,149	181,712   \$	1,064,751 \$	w	8	co	ы	5		\$ 000'56	\$ -		s		S	331,297
	Public Health	2,037,888	1,832,746	(205,142)	\$ 2,453,267	2,212,210		365,169 \$	S	s	s)	s	S		· .		50	(320,000) \$			63,90
200 250	Social Services	5,529,534	5,677,052	147,518	3,620,218	3,620,026		7.144.163 \$	S	So	us u	v e	nu		, ,	,	<i>A u</i>	<i>^</i>	,	A 4	134 792
	Economic Support	3,280,717	3,220,602	(618,56)	6,335,433	410,052.2		0 00*100	2	2	9	9	2					•		,	10.
To	Total - Special Revenue	\$ 44,668,811 \$	45,018,032 \$	349,221	\$ 15,736,228 \$	15,278,677 \$	457,551 \$	22,785,458 \$	23,812,024 \$ (1.0	(1.026,566) \$ 6	6,601,723 \$ 5,	5,910,317 \$ 6	691,406 \$	471,612 \$	95,000 \$	8.978 \$ 8	86,022 \$	(544,218) \$	(316,536) \$ (227	27,682) \$	329,952
ŭ	Mernrise Fund																			s	
300 387 Fix	Fixed Base Operations	\$ - 52 000 3	\$ .000 000 01	- 000 000 0	\$ 0616.920 \$	8 AEA 17E C	S . S	3 518 865 5	3,118 \$	(3,118) \$	2 088 547 5 21	2540751 € 3	S 307 745	1 128 229 \$	\$ - \$ 96 335	86.216 5 11	2 61101	\$ (017 730)	0 \$ - 701	66.374) \$	(3,118)
3	TOTAL STREET	2001201101	20000000	2,000,000			+-		1											_	Orani Contrato
To	Total - Enterprise Fund	\$ 15,152,866 \$	18,083,689   \$	2,930,823	\$ 9,516,829 \$	8,454,175   \$	1,062,654 \$	3,518,865   \$	6,735,027 \$ (3,	(3,216,162) \$ 2	2,988,547 \$ 2,	2,640,751   \$ 3	347,796 \$ 1,	1,125,111 \$	96,335 \$ 8	86,216 \$ 1	10,119 \$	\$ (012,736)	(701,336) \$ (266,374)	66,374) \$	868,856
III	Internal Services						****									,	4	•	,		
400	Employee Benefits	\$ 17,660,450 \$	15,727,588 \$	(1,932,862)	\$ 17,734,802 \$	15,596,026 \$	2,138,776 \$	150,680 \$	147,303 5	3,377 5	71,420 \$	71,420 \$	in v	209,291	w w		in ir		ω v	, v	209.29
	Info Technology	2,694,875	2,669,957	(24.918)	718.251	700.138	18,113 \$	**	9 60	55,606 \$		155,748 \$	362 \$		29,835 \$		s	(120,133) \$		(2,399) \$	46,764
440	Highway	22,375,354	21,874,799	(500,555)	1	7,194,453	-	12,860,742 \$	53	(497,190) \$	S	2.418.171 \$	s	\$	663,853 \$ 1	5	-	5	S	7,7537	171,450
J.	Total - Internal Servs	\$ 43,453,964 \$	40,995,629 \$	(2,458,335) \$	\$ 24,535,115 \$	22,698,348 \$	2,163,290 \$	15,681,952 \$	16,120,159 \$ (4	(438,207) \$ 2	2,682,107 \$ 2.6	2.645,339 \$	36,768 \$ (	(696,484) \$ 2.	2,693,688 \$ 1,59	1,594,942 \$ 1,098	1,098,746 \$ (1,	(1,362,724) \$ (1	(1,387,967) \$	25,243 \$	427,505
710 710 002	Topic Services	£ 222 804	6 666 249	332 362		*		8 406 851 5	,	(163 743) S		6		158 614 5			. 8 .1	(1.149.409) \$ (1	(1.149.409) S	6	158.614
		10000000	or winnerin						1				1			ı.					
		\$ 155,940,098 \$	161,004,173 \$	5,064,075	\$ 75,631,206 \$	5 71.889.728 \$	3,741,478 \$	60,495,405 \$	66,163,893 \$ (5.	\$ (5.668,488) \$ 19	19,719,529 \$ 18.0	18.020,225 \$ 1,6	\$ 1,699,304 \$ 5,	5,162,892 \$ 3,	3,867,311 \$ 2,6	2,610,892 \$ 1,256,419	5	(2,172,195) \$ (1	\$ (1,966,945) \$ (205,250)	5	6,214,061
ŀ			٠	4 4 40 000																	
J.	otal Expenditure Variance	30	•																		
To	Total Revenue Variance - All Funds	All Funds	\$	5,064,075																	
ŏ	Operational Change Positive/(Negalive)	tive/(Negative)	\$	6,214,061																	
Le	Less Carryovers		8	\$ (1,249,310)																	
T	Total Variance Positive/Negative)	enstive	4	4 964 751																	
		,	•																		

# COMMITTEE REPORT TO THE COUNTY BOARD

WE,	THE _		EXECUTIV	/E	COMI	MITTEE
Т	O WHOM	WAS REFERRED RE	SOLUTION	NO: <b>28</b>		
RE:	Purcha	se of Commercial Ha	ngars (Part o	of Parcel No. 590	26-384630)	
	- 0021015	NEDED THE CAME AN	ID DECOMM	-NID		
HAVE	: CONSIL	DERED THE SAME AN				
		ADDITIONAL TIME B THE RESOLUTION B FILING WITH THE C	BE ADOPTED		THE MATTER	
		AMENDING THE RE	SOLUTION A	S FOLLOWS:		
RESF	PECTFUL	LY SUBMITTED THIS	9th	DAY OF	April	2024
		EXEC	UTIVE CO	OMMITTEE		
OPP	OSED TO	O THE REPORT:		CONCURR	ING IN THE F	REPORT:
VERN	NON KOC	H		VERNON KO	OCH	
KEITI	H ABLER		Millioner	KEITH ABLE	:R	
WILL	IAM C. G	OEHRING		WILLIAM C.	GOEHRING	
CUR	Γ BRAUEI	R		CURT BRAU	JER	
EDW	ARD PRO	DCEK		EDWARD PI	ROCEK	

R:\CLIENT\08299\00002\00228043.DOC

## SHEBOYGAN COUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 28 (2023/24)

Re: Purchase of Commercial Hangars (Part of Parcel No. 59026-384630)

WHEREAS, the Transportation Committee has evaluated the operational needs of the Sheboygan County Memorial (International) Airport (the "Airport"); and

WHEREAS, as part of such evaluation, the Committee has identified the growing need for additional hangar space for aircraft storage, both for transient aircraft and to provide storage opportunities for existing Airport tenants; and

WHEREAS, the County Board has determined that acquiring the hangars will best serve the public interest as well as future needs of County airport operations.

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED**, the WB-15 Commercial Offer to Purchase dated February 5, 2024 (the "Offer"), for the hangars identified as part of parcel no. 59026-384630, on file in the County Clerk's Office and approved by Seller is hereby approved.

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED,** the County Board Chair and County Clerk are authorized and directed to execute the Offer, the documents related to closing on the Offer, and such other documents as reasonably necessary to complete the transaction contemplated herein.

Respectfully submitted this 19th day of March, 2024.

#### TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

Thomas Wegner, Chairperson  Bosman, Secretary	Roger Te Stroete, Vice-Chairperson  Acqueline Veldman  Jon Kuhlow
	Opposed to Introduction:

March 13, 2024, draft

## FISCAL NOTE March 2024

Resolution No. 28 (2023/24) RE: Purchase of Commercial Hangars (Part of Parcel No. 59026-384630)

### **Funding:**

Funding is proposed to come from Unassigned Fund Balance of the General Fund. Funding in this manner is consistent with Fund Balance Policy for the General Fund.

General Fund – The unassigned fund balance compared to total governmental fund expenditures (excluding capital project and transportation fund expenditures) will be maintained at a minimum of 15%. The maximum unassigned fund balance should not exceed 30%. If unassigned fund balance drops below the minimum target, the County will implement operational savings to replenish to the minimum level. If unassigned fund balance exceeds the maximum target, excess unassigned fund balance may be used for one-time costs, such as capital outlay acquisition or funding of capital projects

Following the purchase, General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance is estimated to be 20.9%.

Respectfully Submitted,

Steve Hatton, Finance Director

Ole Harton

March 19, 2024

# COMMITTEE REPORT TO THE COUNTY BOARD

W⊨,	THE _		EXEC	<u> </u>	<b>=</b>	COMI	MITTEE
	TO WHO	M WAS REFERRED	ORDINA	NCE N	O:16		
RE:	Amendi	ng Chapter 12 - Co	unty Em	ergency	Medical Servi	ces Council	
HAV	'E CONSIE	ERED THE SAME A	ND REC	OMME	ID:		
		ADDITIONAL TIME THE ORDINANCE FILING WITH THE AMENDING THE O	BE ENAC CLERK	CTED		THE MATTER	
DEC	DEOTE III.	V OUDMITTED THE	•	0.11	544.65		
RES	PECTFULI	_Y SUBMITTED THI	s <u> </u>	9th	DAY OF	April	2024
		EXE	CUTIV	E COI	MMITTEE		
<u>OPF</u>	POSED TO	THE REPORT:			CONCURR	ING IN THE R	EPORT:
VER	NON KOC	Н			VERNON KO	OCH	
KEIT	H ABLER		<del></del>		KEITH ABLE	R	
WILL	IAM C. GO	DEHRING			WILLIAM C.	GOEHRING	·
CUR	T BRAUEF	₹			CURT BRAU	ER	
EDW	ARD PRO	CEK			EDWARD PR	ROCEK	

1 2	SHEBOYGAN COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 110 (2023/24)
3 4 5	Re: Amending Chapter 12 – County Emergency Medical Services Council
6 7 8 9 10	WHEREAS, the Sheboygan County Board of Supervisors created the County Emergency Medical Services Council in Chapter 12 of the Sheboygan County Code of General Ordinances to assist and advise the County in emergency medical services and related matters; and
11 12 13 14	WHEREAS, the County Emergency Medical Services Council is made up of members representing various agencies, disciplines, and areas of expertise; and
15 16 17	WHEREAS, two members of the County Emergency Medical Services Council ard designated as members of the County Medical Society; and
18	WHEREAS, the County Medical Society no longer exists.
19 20 21	NOW, THEREFORE, the County Board of Supervisors of the County of Sheboyga does ordain as follows:
22 23 24 25 26 27	Section 1. <u>Amending Chapter 12</u> . Chapter 12 of the Sheboygan Country Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows (only those Sections or portion of Sections affected appear – deletions indicated by strikeouts; additions by shading):
28 29 30 31 32 33 34	12.01 CREATION OF COUNCIL. There is hereby established a Count Emergency Medical Services Council to be appointed by the Chairperson of the County Board and confirmed by the County Boar to serve Sheboygan County representing the following agencies disciplines, or areas of expertise, but not to exceed a total of 2 members:
35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42	<ul> <li>(a) County Board.</li> <li>(b) Hospital Administration.</li> <li>(c) Sheboygan Fire Department.</li> <li>(d) Sheboygan County Fire Departments.</li> <li>(e) Law Enforcement – City, Village or Town.</li> <li>(f) Law Enforcement - County.</li> <li>(g) Private Ambulance Services.</li> <li>(h) Rescue Services.</li> </ul>
43 44 45 46 47	<ul> <li>(i) County Bar Association.</li> <li>(j) Consumers interested but not involved in provision of EM Services.</li> <li>(k) City Government.</li> <li>(l) Village Government.</li> </ul>

48 49	(m)	Town Governme	
49 50	(n) (o)	First Responder	agement and Highway Safety Coordination.
51	(p)	Nursing.	•
52	(p)	_	Society Licensed Medical Provider.
53	(r)		Society Licensed Medical Provider.
54	(s)	Industry.	and the second s
55	(t)	Member at-large	<b>).</b>
56	•	•	
57			
58	Section 2.	Effective Date.	The herein Ordinance shall take effect upon
59	enactment.		•
60			
61			
62	Respectfully submit	ted this 19 <sup>th</sup> day of	f March, 2024.
63			
64			
65		LAW CO	DMMITTEE
66			
67			D A A W A
68			Paul A. Drubec / cs Paul A. Gruber, Vice-Chairperson
69	Gerald Jorgensen, Chairpe	erson	Paul A. Gruber, Vice-Chairperson
70 71	Word laborate	4.0	
72	Wandy Schobert / Wendy Schobert, Secretary	<u> </u>	Jacob Immel
73	Welldy Ochobert, Secretary	у	
74			Carl Monhof /cs Carl Nonhof
75			Carl Nophof
76			Call Hollion -
77		Opposed to	Introduction:
 78		C ppocou (c	v advitorii
79			
80			
81			
82			
83	Countersigned by:		
84			
85			
86			
87	Vernon Koch, Chairperson		
88			
89 on			
90 91	R:\CLIENT\08299\00021\00226526.DC	oc	March 26, 2024, draft

## FISCAL NOTE March 2024

Ordinance No. 16 (2023/24) RE: Amending Chapter 12, Emergency Medical Services Council

## **Funding:**

No additional funding needs are anticipated as a result of the proposed amendments.

Respectfully Submitted,

Steve Hatton, Finance Director

March 19, 2024

# CHAPTER 2 RULES OF ORDER TO GOVERN THE SHEBOYGAN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

- 2.01 RULE I TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING
- 2.02 RULE II QUORUM
- 2.03 RULE III PRESIDING OFFICER
- 2.04 RULE IV ORDER OF BUSINESS
- 2.05 RULE V AGENDA
- 2.06 RULE VI VOTING
- 2.07 RULE VII GENERAL APPOINTMENTS
- 2.08 RULE VIII COMMITTEES
- 2.09 RULE IX COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS
- 2.10 RULE X COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION AND MEETINGS
- 2.11 RULE XI EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
- 2.12 RULE XII DUTIES OF COMMITTEES
  - (1) Executive Committee
  - (2) Finance Committee
  - (3) Health and Human Services Committee
  - (4) Health Care Centers Committee
  - (5) Human Resources Committee
  - (6) Law Committee
  - (7) Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee
  - (8) Property Committee
  - (9) Transportation Committee
- 2.13 RULE XIII REFERRAL OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES
- 2.14 RULE XIV RESERVED
- 2.15 RULE XV RULE CHANGES
- 2.16 RULE XVI PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR
- 2.17 RULE XVII PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE
- 2.18 RULE XVIII REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICES
- 2.19 RULE XIX DEBATE
- 2.20 RULE XX NEWS MEDIA COVERAGE
- 2.21 RULE XXI PUBLIC ADDRESSES TO THE BOARD
- 2.22 RULE XXII CONFLICT OF INTEREST
- 2.23 RULE XXIII COMPLAINTS
- 2.01 RULE I TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING. The County Board of Supervisors shall meet in regular session on the following dates:
  - (1) The third Tuesday in April. This meeting shall be the Organizational meeting in even numbered years.
  - (2) The second and fourth Tuesdays in April, in even numbered years.
  - (3) The third Tuesday in May, June, July, August, and September.
  - (4) The Tuesday preceding the final Tuesday in October [being the commencement of the Annual Meeting, to the extent required by Wis. Stat. § 59.11, and being the date of the Initial Budget Presentation pursuant to Chapter 5 of this Code].
  - (5) The final Tuesday in October [being a continuation of the Annual Meeting and being the time of the Budget Review and Public Hearing pursuant to Chapter 5 of this Code]. No other business shall be conducted at this meeting.
  - (6) The first Tuesday in November. The meeting shall be the concluding day of the Annual Meeting and the Budget Adoption day pursuant to Chapter 5 of this Code.
  - (7) The third Tuesday in December, January, February, and March.

The Board shall meet in special session upon written request of a majority of the Supervisors in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 59.11(2). Any special session request shall include a proposed Agenda to be considered at the special session.

All Board meetings shall begin at 6:00 p.m., and all meetings shall be held with open doors in the County Board Chambers at the Courthouse in the City of Sheboygan, Wisconsin, and all persons conducting themselves in an orderly manner may attend. Notwithstanding the above, the County Board Chair may determine that it is appropriate to alter the meeting location or to convene the Board remotely through April 16, 2024, and shall direct the County Clerk to prepare the Agenda notifying the public of the alternate meeting location.

- 2.02 RULE II QUORUM. A majority of the members elected shall constitute a quorum. <u>Any member may attend remotely.</u>
- 2.03 RULE III PRESIDING OFFICER. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board. In the absence of the Chairperson or at the direction of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall preside. In the absence of both, the County Clerk shall call the Board to order and the Board shall elect one of its members as temporary chairperson.

The Chairperson shall first call the members to order at the hour fixed for the meeting and then proceed to call the roll of members, and if a quorum be present, the Journal of the preceding meeting shall be presented so that any mistakes can be corrected. (The Journal for the last meeting of the Board term shall be approved by the Chairperson.)

The Chairperson shall preserve and may speak on points of order in preference to other members and shall be required to vote on all questions and matters pertaining to the Board.

No Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors shall serve more than two (2) consecutive terms in that specific capacity. A term shall be defined as a period of two (2) full years.

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 59.12(1), at the Organizational Meeting, the Chairperson from the prior preceding Board shall preside until a successor is elected.

#### 2.04 RULE IV - ORDER OF BUSINESS.

- (1) For the Organizational Meeting, the order of business shall be:
  - (a) Call to order.
  - (b) Certification of compliance with Open Meeting Law.
  - (c) Pledge of Allegiance.
  - (d) Invocation.
  - (e) Roll call.
  - (f) Administration of the oath of office.
  - (g) Introduction of Department Heads and Introductory Statements by County Administrator.
  - (h) Adoption of Rules.
  - (i) Election of Chairperson.
  - (j) Election of Vice-Chairperson.
  - (k) Election of additional Executive Committee members.
  - (I) Introductory Statements by Elected Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.
  - (m) Adjournment to the next meeting.
- (2) Organizational Election. Following the Adoption of Rules the outgoing Chairperson shall, in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 59.12, direct the County Clerk to direct the Corporation Counsel to conduct the election of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and additional Executive Committee members. The Corporation Counsel shall appoint three Election Tellers from among the Department Heads.
  - (a) Election Announcement. The Corporation Counsel shall announce the election, receive the vote tallies from the Election Tellers for each ballot, and certify to the County Board the final result of each ballot and each election.

- (b) Election Tellers. The Election Tellers shall collect the votes from each County Supervisor, count the votes, and report the totals to the Corporation Counsel.
- (c) Ballots. Except as provided hereafter, the Organizational Election shall be conducted by secret ballot in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 19.88(1). The voting ballots shall be paper ballots supplied by the County Clerk, and shall have no writing or marks thereon except that which is placed on the ballot by each voting County Supervisor.
- (d) Nominations. The first vote in each election for a given office shall be the nominating ballot. The Corporation Counsel shall display the result of the nominating ballot and ask all Supervisors receiving at least one (1)) vote if they accept the nomination. Any County Supervisor declining the nomination will be removed from consideration in the election for which the nominating ballot was taken. The nominating ballot cannot serve as an election ballot, even if a candidate receives a majority of votes cast.
- (e) Election Balloting. County Supervisors shall cast one (1) vote per ballot for one of the names placed in nomination for the office at election by writing the last name of the nominee on the voting ballot. If none of the nominated candidates receives at least one vote more than fifty percent (50%) of the votes cast, another round of balloting will be held. Balloting rounds will continue until one of the nominated candidates receives at least one vote more than fifty percent (50%) of the votes cast, at which point the Corporation Counsel shall declare that candidate elected. Any vote received by the Election Tellers that is unreadable, contains extraneous verbiage or marks, is blank, or is cast for a name not in nomination will be classified as an abstention, shall reduce the total of votes cast by one vote and shall impact the number of votes needed for fifty percent (50%) of votes cast to be elected.
- (3) The order of business for all other meetings except the budget review session, special sessions, and the Organizational Meeting shall be as follows:
  - (a) Call to order.
  - (b) Certification of compliance with Open Meeting Law.
  - (c) Pledge of Allegiance.
  - (d) Roll call.
  - (e) Introduction of memorial Resolutions, not requiring Committee referral and action thereon.
  - (f) Approval of Journal.
  - (g) Committee and other appointments.
  - (h) Presentations.
  - (i) Public Addresses to the Board.
  - (j) Letters, Communications, and Announcements.
  - (k) County Administrator's report.
  - (I) Public Hearings.
  - (m) Reports of Committees on referrals of Resolutions and Ordinances and action thereon in the following order:
    - 1. Executive Committee.
    - 2. Other standing committees in alphabetical order.
    - 3. Special committees.
  - (n) Elections.
  - (o) Other Committee reports and action thereon, if any.
  - (p) Introduction of Resolutions, discussion, and action thereon. (All new Resolutions referred to Committees shall be read, titles only.)
  - (q) Introduction of Ordinances, discussion, and action thereon. (All new Ordinances referred to Committees shall be read, titles only.)
  - (r) Grievance Appeals required by Section 48.09-08 of this Code.
  - (s) Adjournment.
- 2.05 RULE V AGENDA. The Agenda for all County Board meetings shall be prepared by the County Clerk subject to the approval of the County Board Chairperson and Vice Chairperson. All

Resolutions and Ordinances which at the previous board meeting were referred to Committee must be placed on the Agenda to be submitted to the Board unless at the time of the referral a longer period of time for reporting out was authorized by the County Board Chairperson or by action of the County Board.

The County Clerk shall at least five (5) days before each meeting of the Board [except when the Board is in its Annual Meeting session or in special session] e-mail to each Board member the Agenda and accompanying documents. When the Board is in its Annual Meeting session or in special session, such e-mailing shall be at least two (2) working days prior to the Board meeting. Any documents accompanying the Agenda as electronic mail attachments shall be considered as drafts if so identified and may not be relied upon for accuracy. Revised documents may be substituted for documents identified as drafts at any time up to the meeting by the County Clerk.

All matters to be included on the Agenda shall be in the office of the County Clerk by 3:30 p.m. one (1) week prior to the meeting.

Any matter which was not timely presented to the Clerk's office and which it is desired to have presented to the County Board may be added to the Agenda on the day of the session by majority vote of the Board if compliance with the Open Meetings Law has been accomplished.

- 2.06 RULE VI VOTING. All voting required to be publicly recorded shall be done simultaneously through the voting machine and when voting is closed, such votes shall be recorded as cast.
- 2.07 RULE VII GENERAL APPOINTMENTS. All appointments requiring confirmation or approval by the County Board except appointments of Board members to Committees shall be submitted at the time of submitting the Agenda to the County Board members so that the same may be acted on at the meeting to which said appointments are first presented. If the appointments are not submitted at such time, they shall be required to lay over until the next session of the Board.
- 2.08 RULE VIII COMMITTEES. The following shall be the standing (liaison) committees of the County Board:
  - (1) Executive Committee (Capital Improvement Committee).
  - (2) Finance Committee.
  - (3) Health and Human Services Committee (County Health and Human Services Board).
  - (4) Health Care Centers Committee (Trustees).
  - (5) Human Resources Committee.
  - (6) Law Committee (Emergency Management Committee).
  - (7) Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee (County Solid Waste Management Board and Committee on Agriculture and Extension Education).
  - (8) Property Committee.
  - (9) Transportation Committee (Highway Committee).

The above Committees shall also serve as the statutory committees as indicated in parentheses.

Special committees may be created by the County Board for such special purposes or limited time as the Board determines.

The Grievance Committee required by Wis. Stat. § 59.26(8)(b) shall be composed of five (5) persons, consisting of the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary of the Law Committee, or their designees, and the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of the Human Resources Committee, or their designees. The jurisdiction of this Grievance Committee shall be limited to that set forth in Wis. Stat. § 59.26(8)(b) and shall apply to suspension, demotion, or dismissal of sworn law enforcement personnel. All other grievances arising from the Sheriff's Department shall be handled by the Human Resources Committee in accordance with past practice. The Grievance Committee shall be considered a special committee rather than a standing committee.

2.09 RULE IX - COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS. All Committee appointments, unless otherwise required by Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise voted by the Board, shall be nominated by the Executive Committee and confirmed by the majority vote of the Board.

The Executive Committee shall meet within three (3) days following the Organizational Meeting of the County Board and on such days thereafter as may be necessary for the purposes of making the initial nominations for Committee appointments.

The length of term that a County Board member serves on a Committee shall be determined by the Executive Committee to provide the broadest background in the best interest of the County and Committee operations, provided that consideration shall be given to the rotation of membership on Committees.

No member shall serve on more than three (3) Committees. First preference for third Committee assignments shall go to the elected Executive Committee members except for the County Board Chairperson who serves as a non-voting ex officio member of each Committee.

A County Board member shall not serve on a Committee that provides liaison oversight to a Department or office that employs a sibling, spouse, or child of the County Board member.

- 2.10 RULE X COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION AND MEETINGS. Unless otherwise specifically provided, the organizational structure and duties of each Committee shall be as herein stated:
  - (1) <u>Membership</u>. Each Committee shall have five (5) Supervisor members except for the Health and Human Services Committee which shall have six (6) Supervisor members. The County Board Chairperson shall be an ex-officio member of all Committees.
  - (2) Organization. Each Committee shall as its first order of business elect its own chairperson, vice-chairperson, and secretary. No person shall serve as chairperson on more than one (1) standing committee nor shall any chairperson serve more than two (2) consecutive terms as chairperson of the same committee. A term shall be defined as a period of two (2) full years.
  - (3) Committee Secretary. The secretary shall keep records and minutes of all Committee sessions and shall be permitted assistance in his or her duties when deemed necessary by the Committee. The Departments or offices for which such Committee acts as liaison to the Board shall, upon the Committee secretary's request, provide any required secretarial services to the Committee. Any Committee which does not act as liaison to the Board for a Department or office and all special Committees may request secretarial services be provided and the County Administrator shall direct a Department Head or elected official, as the County Administrator determines is appropriate under the circumstances, to provide such services. In the event extraordinary expenses are incurred (for non-wage items such as materials, supplies, printing, postage, etc.), the Executive Committee may authorize reimbursement therefor out of the County Board account.
  - (4) <u>Term.</u> The Committee shall be organized for a two- (2-) year term.
  - (5) Meetings. The organizational meetings shall be called by County Board action. Thereafter, all regular meetings shall be scheduled by Committee action. All **regular** Committee meetings may not be scheduled earlier than 4:00 p.m. without a 2/3 vote of all Committee members. **Special** meetings may be called with notice to all members by the Committee chairperson or on the written request of three (3) Committee members. The Agenda for all Committee meetings shall be prepared by the Committee Secretary or the department personnel providing secretarial services to the Committee, subject to the approval of the Committee Chairperson or designee. Committees may meet remotely, or any Committee member may call in, through April 16, 2024.Only County Board Supervisors who are members of the Committee are eligible for per diem.
  - (6) Quorum. A majority of the members of any Committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Any Committee member may attend remotely or will be counted for purposes of quorum.
  - (7) Minutes. All Committee secretaries shall as soon as is reasonably possible and convenient file a duplicate copy of the minutes of every meeting in the office of the County Clerk, and said minutes shall be available for review and informational purposes

by all County Board members and the general public. Minutes may be posted as "unapproved" until the subsequent meeting when the minutes of the prior meeting shall be placed on the Agenda for approval.

- (8) <u>Joint Meetings</u>. Committees may hold joint meetings upon a joint Committee referral of a Resolution or Ordinance by the Board Chair or by agreement of the Committee Chairs. If Committees hold joint meetings, the following procedures apply:
  - (a) A majority of the sum of the members of each Committee constitutes a quorum for the joint meeting.
  - (b) All members of each Committee shall vote on all business at the joint meeting, and a majority of the sum of the members present voting affirmatively shall be required to pass any measure.
  - (c) Nothing precludes each Committee from holding its own separate meeting before or after a joint meeting if properly noticed.
  - (d) In the event of a disagreement between Committee Chairs, the Board Chair shall designate which Committee Chair shall preside.
- 2.11 RULE XI EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE. The Executive Committee shall consist of five (5) members elected by the Board at the Organizational Meeting. This Committee shall be composed of the County Board Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and three (3) Board members. The Chairperson of the Board shall preside over the Executive Committee and the Vice-Chairperson of the Board shall be Vice-Chairperson of the Executive Committee.
- 2.12 RULE XII DUTIES OF COMMITTEES. Each Committee shall carry out the duties specifically delegated to it by the County Board together with such duties as may be authorized by Wisconsin Statutes. Notwithstanding the general duties delegated to a Committee, any action otherwise undertaken by a Committee may be reversed or modified by action of the full County Board. In carrying out Committee Liaison responsibilities, each standing Committee shall audit and authorize for payment all proper claims and expenses for such office or Department and shall review the annual budget requests from the operations of such office or Department prior to submittal of the same to the Finance Committee. Committee members and other Board members should direct inquiries for additional information beyond that provided by the Department to the Liaison Committee or to the County Administrator. A general statement of the respective Committee duties is as follows:
  - (1) <u>Executive Committee</u>. It shall be the duty of the Executive Committee:
    - (a) To assist the Chairperson in the administration of the County Board's business and make recommendations as may expedite the business of County government as may from time to time be warranted.
    - (b) To serve as liaison with the County Administrator and in that capacity to confer with the County Administrator from time to time concerning the operation of such office and the administration and management of all County Departments and offices.
    - (c) To nominate for confirmation by the County Board the membership of all Committees not otherwise selected.
    - (d) To recommend changes in the standing rules as may from time to time be necessary.
    - (e) To review all criticism of Board and Committee operations and otherwise meet with and advise other Committees and their officers when so requested, and to meet with individual Board members to review with them procedural Board matters.
    - (f) To review legislative matters in which the County may have an interest and advise the Board accordingly and to promote the passage of legislation which the County Board feels is in the best interests of Sheboygan County.
    - (g) To provide guidance to the County Administrator and participate in the development of the County budget and the Five-year Capital Plan as set forth at Chapter 5 of this Code.
    - (h) To act in areas not otherwise delegated by these rules.
    - (i) To review, audit, and give final approval to Board members' per diem, mileage charges, and reimbursement of expense claims.
    - (j) To function as the Ethics Board pursuant to Chapter 1 of this Code.

- (k) To act as the County Economic Development Committee to provide oversight to the County's Industrial Development and Revolving Loan Agency.
- (I) Approve COVID-19-related expenditures made by the County Administrator.
- (2) <u>Finance Committee</u>. It shall be the duty of the Finance Committee:
  - (a) To carry out the financial policy of the County as established in the County Budget, Board Ordinances and Resolutions, and make recommendations as to the interpretation and administration of such policy.
  - (b) To serve as liaison with the Finance Department, Information Technology Department, County Clerk, and County Treasurer and in that capacity to confer with them from time to time concerning the operation of their offices and Departments. To the extent that the functions of the Finance Department affect constitutional officers, it shall coordinate with such officers the responsibilities of such office and the work of the centralized accounting department.
  - (c) To examine and schedule all accounts, claims, demands, or causes of action against the County, unless otherwise delegated.
  - (d) To audit the claims of all Departments not otherwise delegated and to keep supervisory check over those audited by other Committees.
  - (e) The Committee shall have the authority to authorize payment of any and all dog damage claims so long as at the time of the consideration of the claim that the Town Chairperson, Village President, or Mayor of the municipality wherein the claim arises, or his delegated representative, may participate (without voting rights) in the consideration of the claim; and so long as said claim shall not exceed One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00). The Committee shall further be authorized to approve payment of Circuit Court claims within its authority of Subparagraph (c) above.
  - (f) Pursuant to Chapter 5 of this Code, to participate in the preparation of the budget for the County and oversee its publication and notice of hearing thereon.
  - (g) To examine the financial condition of the County each month and when necessary advise the County Administrator and Department Heads thereof.
  - (h) To designate the depositories for all County funds pursuant to Wis. Stat. §§ 34.01(1) and 34.05.
  - (i) To recommend temporary investments and otherwise advise the County Treasurer in the management of County funds.
  - (j) To authorize expenditures not included in the budget pursuant to Chapter 5 of this Code.
  - (k) To have jurisdiction of all matters relating to taxes and assessments, illegal taxing, and all questions pertaining to tax certificates.
  - (I) To have charge of all *In Rem.* proceedings instituted by the County on tax delinquent property.
  - (m) To have charge of advertising and disposal of all County lands acquired by tax deed.
  - (n) To consult with the County Treasurer when carrying out its responsibilities under the provisions of Subsections (I) through (o), above.
  - (o) The Finance Committee is authorized to contract for audit and operational review services as it deems appropriate. In making audit determinations, the Committee shall consult with the Committees of the Departments being audited for their recommendations as to the nature of the audit to be performed and the determination of who shall make such audit.
  - (p) To have charge of all property and liability insurance policy issues for the County, including all issues relating to the procurement and sufficiency of bonds pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 59.21. The Chairperson shall be a voting member of the Committee when carrying out this function. The Committee may seek bids for a combination of liability and worker's compensation insurance policies, but the administration of worker's compensation insurance and the awarding of a purchase order for the same shall remain within the jurisdiction of the Human Resources Department under the oversight of the Human Resources Committee.
  - (q) Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 74.69(3), to make determinations for the County Board of postal service delay or error.
- (3) <u>Health and Human Services Committee</u>. It shall be the duty of the Health and Human Services Committee:

- (a) To serve as the County Health and Human Services Board as provided in Wis. Stat. §§ 46.23(4) and 251.02 and as more particularly set forth in Chapter 10 of this Code of Ordinances.
- (b) To serve as liaison for the Health and Human Services Department, including administration of child support services as required pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 59.53(5), and the Veterans' Service Office and in that capacity to confer with them from time to time concerning the operation of their offices.
- (4) <u>Health Care Centers Committee (Trustees)</u>. The Health Care Centers Committee shall consist of the five (5) trustees appointed (pursuant to <del>Wis.</del> Wis. Stat. § 46.18). It shall be the duty of the Health Care Centers Committee:
  - (a) To manage the County Health Care Centers and carry out the duties and responsibilities required by Wisconsin law.
  - (b) To be responsible for the administration of Rocky Knoll Health Care Center buildings and related property.
- (5) <u>Human Resources Committee</u>. It shall be the duty of the Human Resources Committee:
  - (a) To consider and review all adjustment of salaries of County officers and employees and recommend the same to the County Board, unless otherwise provided.
  - (b) To have general supervision of all personnel policies of the County including such things as methods of recruitment, sick leave, vacations, paid holidays, and leaves of absence and to authorize the granting of increases for all employees within the provisions of Chapter 47 of this Code if such increases have had prior approval of the Department's Liaison Committee.
  - (c) To cooperate with the County Administrator and the Department Heads in the enforcement of County personnel policies.
  - (d) To serve as liaison with the Human Resources Department and Corporation Counsel and in that capacity to confer with them from time to time concerning the operation of their offices and Departments.
  - (e) To examine and investigate grievances and enforce necessary discipline in cooperation with the County Administrator and Department Heads as may from time to time be required under collective bargaining agreements or County policies.
  - (f) To act in an advisory capacity to the Finance Director in the administration of the Sheboygan County contributions to the Wisconsin Retirement System.
  - (g) To have oversight of all insurance such as medical expense, life, dental, worker's compensation, or otherwise which would be benefits to the employees of Sheboygan County and to authorize payment of benefits by County check countersigned by the County Board Chairperson, Treasurer, and Clerk.
  - (h) To act as the <u>liaison to negotiating committee</u> for all labor negotiations under Wis. Stat. § 111.70.
  - (i) To present to the October County Board meeting an annual report of the actual cost of health insurance for claims paid during the preceding September through August twelve- (12-) month period which shall include the actual cost converted to a monthly rate. for the following category groups:
    - 1. Retirees age 65 and over;
    - 2. Retirees under age 65;
    - 3. Active employees.
      - A. Full-time employees;
      - B. Part-time employees, including County Board Supervisors.

Said report shall also include a recommended monthly single and family rate for the current year for each of the above and any other required classifications for County Board approval full-time and part-time employees and any other classifications.

- (6) <u>Law Committee</u>. It shall be the duty of the Law Committee:
  - (a) To serve as liaison between the Sheriff, Clerk of Courts, District Attorney, Medical Examiner, and Circuit Court Commissioner and in that capacity to confer with them from time to time concerning the operation of their offices and Departments.

- (b) To audit and approve all claims and expenses pertaining to the jail, meals to prisoners and contracts therefor, charges of transportation of patients and prisoners to various institutions, claims of any law enforcement officer for services, and to submit a quarterly summary of its audits to the Finance Committee.
- (c) To consider for confirmation the persons appointed appointment by the Sheriff to positions of employment the Inspector position as may be required and approved for the good operation of said office.
- (d) To act as the Emergency Management Committee for the County pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 166.03(4)(c).323.14(1). In such capacity, it shall be the duty of the Committee:
  - 1. To adopt an effective program of emergency management within the County consistent with the state plan of emergency management.
  - 2. To prepare budget requests for funds for the program and audit the expenditures thereof.
  - 3. To control and direct the activities of the Emergency Management Director and otherwise carry out the provisions of Wis. Stat. § 166.03(4).323.14.
- (e) To set fees for the Medical Examiner's office as provided in Wis. Stat. § 59.36.
- (7) <u>Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee</u>. It shall be the duty of the Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee:
  - (a) To serve as liaison with the County Planning Department & Conservation Department and conservation, snowmobile, and recreation clubs; and in that capacity to confer with them from time to time concerning the operation of their offices and to provide oversight for the supervision, management, and control of the operation of the Marsh Park, Gerber Lakes, and County-owned recreational facilities not otherwise assigned to another committee (e.g. Taylor Park). County-owned or operated public access to public waters, and County-administered recreation trails.
  - (b) To work toward the coordination of the zoning and building ordinances and land use planning of the various municipalities.
  - (c) To develop data regarding the industrial needs, advantages, and sites in the County, to otherwise promote the industrial and commercial activity of the County and to provide the continued improvement of the industrial and commercial climate of the County.
  - (d) To cooperate with the Transportation Committee in the oversight of wayside and highway parks and access highway rights-of-way.
  - (e) To have the responsibility and authority for carrying out the purposes of the County Solid Waste Management System and when acting in that capacity, it shall be known as the County Solid Waste Authority [Wis. Stat. § 59.70(2)].
  - (f) To serve as liaison between the County Board and the Board of Adjustments.
  - (g) To act as the County Rural Planning Committee pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 27.019.
  - (h) To exercise the oversight responsibilities of the non-motorized transportation pilot program with the Transportation Committee. The Chairperson of the Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee shall act as the Chair of any joint meeting held with the Transportation Committee for this purpose.
  - (i) To act as the Committee on Agriculture and Extension Education [Wis. Stat. § 59.56(3)].
  - (j) To serve as the Land Conservation Committee of Sheboygan County (Wis. Stat. § 92.06). [The chairperson of the County USDA Farm Service Agency Committee created under 16 U.S.C., § 590h(b), shall also be a member when the Committee is acting in this capacity, all in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 92.06(1)(b)(2).]
  - (k) This Committee is hereby specifically delegated the authority to enter into agreements and memoranda of understanding on behalf of Sheboygan County with regard to those matters within its statutory authority enumerated in the above mentioned under Wis. Stat. chs. 91 and 92- and County-owned recreational facilities.
  - (I) To consider applications for Farmland Preservation Agreements under the provisions of Wis. Stat. §§ 91.11 through 91.23 and to make the determination for the County Board as to whether the applications should be granted or

rejected. In the event the Committee rejects an application, the Committee shall include a written statement of the reasons for its recommendation for rejection. The Committee shall use only the statutory criteria in making its rejection. The Committee shall use only the statutory criteria in making its determination unless this County Board by resolution has specifically established other criterion which enhances the agricultural preservation purposes of the law, which additional criterion shall be on file with the County Clerk and available to any applicants if such other criterion is so established.

- (m) To serve as liaison with the Register of Deeds.
- (n) To cooperate with the University of Wisconsin and the local U.W. College staff whenever necessary and requested in the development of the educational phases of the U.W. College or other related matters. To serve as the liaison to the UW-Extension.
- (o) To approve projects and expenditures from the Monsanto settlement fund.
- (8) <u>Property Committee</u>. It shall be the duty of the Property Committee:
  - (a) To serve as liaison with the Building Services Department as it provides building services to the Administration Building, Detention Center, Human Services Building, Courthouse, Law Enforcement Center, Taylor Park, Aging & Disability Resource Center, and the Museum and in that capacity to confer with the administrative officials from time to time concerning the operation of their facilities.
  - (b) To have charge of permanent improvements, repairs, leases, rentals, and maintenance concerning all County buildings and grounds, including parking lots, not otherwise assigned by these rules.
  - (c) To audit and approve all claims referred to them for building repairs and capital improvements for any of the aforesaid buildings and grounds.
  - (d) To serve as liaison to the property related to the U.W. College UW-Green Bay, Sheboygan Campus.
  - (e) To have charge of the U.W. College UW-Green Bay, Sheboygan Campus buildings and the property surrounding said buildings known as the U.W. site UW-Green Bay, Sheboygan Campus and the access roads adjacent thereto.
- (9) Transportation Committee. It shall be the duty of the Transportation Committee:
  - (a) To act as the statutory Highway Committee (Wis. Stat. § 83.015) and to carry out the provisions of Wis. Stat. § 83.015(2).
  - (b) To serve as liaison with the Transportation Director and in that capacity to confer with the Transportation Director from time to time concerning the operation of that office and the Highway Division of the Transportation Department.
  - (c) Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 83.035 to supervise contracts entered into with Cities, Villages, and Towns within the County borders to construct and maintain streets and highways in such municipalities.
  - (d) To serve as the liaison committee for the Airport Division of the Transportation Department supervising all <u>Airport and Fixed Based Operator</u> operations and in that regard to lease, regulate, and manage the Airport property; to enforce existing leases, contracts, and operational agreements relating to said Airport; to negotiate all new contracts and leases that may arise from time to time with regard to operations and management of the Airport.
  - (e) To exercise the oversight responsibilities of the non-motorized transportation pilot program with the Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee.
  - (f) To set special event and overnight parking fee schedules for transient aircraft utilizing Airport property.
  - (g) To grant utility easements at the Airport.
- 2.13 RULE XIII REFERRAL OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES. Except as otherwise provided, all Resolutions and main motions (other than procedural or memorial) and all Ordinances submitted to the Board shall first be referred by the Chairperson to a Board Committee or Committees for a recommendation. The Committee or Committees shall report their recommendation as to said matter to the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board except when the Board is in the annual meeting when said report shall be made within two (2) session days after referral.

The referral decision of the Chairperson may be modified if on motion and majority vote the Board decides to refer the matter in a different manner.

The sponsor of any Resolution or Ordinance which contemplates the expenditure of County funds shall submit the proposal to the Finance Department for a fiscal analysis of the proposal. The fiscal analysis shall accompany the Resolution or Ordinance when introduced.

Resolutions and Ordinances shall be automatically placed on the Agenda by the Clerk when the report of the Committee is due and shall thereupon be considered by the Board. Where the Committee Report recommends adoption or enactment subject to amendatory language, the Resolution or Ordinance may be brought forward on the Board floor by a motion to adopt or enact, by a motion to adopt or enact as amended in accordance with the Committee Report, or by a motion to "file." A motion may also be made to grant the Committee additional time upon 2/3 vote of the Board members present or if authorized by the County Board Chairperson. Where a motion is made to "file" a Resolution or Ordinance indefinitely without further action, the file motion is debatable.

Resolutions and Ordinances may be withdrawn (pulled) from Committee without action by the said Committee at any time by 2/3 vote of the Board members present as to Ordinances and majority vote as to Resolutions, provided that adequate notice of anticipated withdrawal action is made to the Clerk and Chairperson so that the Agenda reflects the anticipated withdrawal action. The Board member who moves for the measure to be withdrawn shall offer an explanation as to why the measure should be withdrawn from Committee. A memo offering an explanation as to why the measure should be withdrawn from Committee shall accompany the Ordinances or Resolutions.

No Resolutions or Ordinances may be introduced at the final meeting of the term of a Board (second Tuesday in April in even numbered calendar years) or at the first regular meeting of a term of a Board (fourth Tuesday in April in even numbered calendar years).

- 2.14 RULE XIV Reserved.
- 2.15 RULE XV RULE CHANGES. No standing rule shall be rescinded, changed, or suspended except by a 2/3 vote of the Board.
- 2.16 RULE XVI PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR. The privilege of the floor is limited to County Board members and its Clerk, County Administrator, and Corporation Counsel unless the same is granted by majority consent of the Board. The Chairperson may grant privilege of the floor to County Department Heads or elected officials or others with pertinent information to answer questions regarding matters before the Board unless objection thereto is voiced by any member present, and if such objection is made, a motion and majority vote will then be required. Any person granted privilege of the floor by vote of the Board shall limit his or her remarks to ten (10) minutes unless for good cause such time limitation is extended by the Chairperson.
- 2.17 RULE XVII PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE. Except as modified by the herein rules or as required by the Wisconsin Statutes, the rules of parliamentary practice in Robert's Rules of Order shall govern in all cases where they are applicable, and a copy of said Robert's Rules of Order shall be placed on the desk of each member provided to each member upon request.
- 2.18 RULE XVIII REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICES. Each Board member shall for each day he or she attends a meeting of the Board receive mileage as determined by Chapter 5 of this Code for each mile traveled in going and returning from said meetings by the most usual traveled route and he or she shall be entitled to compensation at the rate as determined by County Board Resolution for all mileage necessarily and actually traveled in connection with all Committee services.

Each Board member shall, by the 20th day of each month, make efforts to submit to the County Clerk's office an expense account statement indicating County Board and Committee Meetings attended, together with mileage and other allowable expenses incurred during the preceding 16th to 15th thirty- (30-) day period. If a Board member fails to submit his or her mileage reimbursement at least every three (3) months, there shall be no mileage reimbursement. The County Clerk's office shall review the statement for accuracy and compliance with County

Ordinances. Such payment shall be made monthly subject to reimbursement for any payments not approved upon subsequent audit by the Executive Committee.

Non-board members who serve on standing or special committees shall be entitled to meals and mileage reimbursement as provided for in Chapter 45 of the County Code of Ordinances unless there is a specific prohibition against such reimbursement.

- 2.19 RULE XIX DEBATE. The Board recognizes the fundamental right of each of its members to be heard on every debatable issue and to that end no call of the question nor other motion to limit debate shall be in order so long as any member shall desire to speak to the same question if such member has not already addressed the issue for more than ten (10) minutes or has been recognized to speak three (3) times on the issue.
- 2.20 RULE XX NEWS MEDIA COVERAGE. In furtherance of the declaration of the open meetings policy of Wis. Stat. § 19.81 which provides that the public is entitled to the fullest and most complete information regarding the affairs of government as is compatible with the conduct of governmental business; and whenever the Board or its Committees are meeting in open session, such body shall make a reasonable effort to accommodate any person desiring to record, film, or photograph the meeting as provided by Wis. Stat. § 19.90.
  - (1) <u>Use of Equipment</u>. Recording, filming, or photographing shall not be carried on in a manner that interferes with the conduct of the meeting or the rights of participants.
  - (2) <u>Sound and Light Criteria</u>. Only audio and visual equipment which does not produce distracting light or sound may be used to cover County proceedings. Artificial lighting devices shall not be used in connection with equipment except in those circumstances where such auxiliary devices are necessary and then only with the advance consent of the Chairperson.
  - (3) <u>Location of Equipment and Personnel</u>. Operators of camera equipment and news reporters shall have free access to all areas open to the public. The Executive Committee may make provisions for placement of equipment and accommodations for news reporters and equipment operators within the Board area. Operators and news personnel may set up their equipment within such area prior to the proceedings but shall not move about so as to distract during the proceedings themselves.
- 2.21 RULE XXI PUBLIC ADDRESSES TO THE BOARD. Public addresses to the Board which are permitted shall be subject to the following limitations:
  - (1) Persons desiring to address the Board shall register such intention with the County Clerk's Office after the prior County Board meeting, but not later than 5:00 p.m. on the Monday preceding the County Board meeting.
  - (2) Not more than ten (10) persons shall be permitted under the provisions of this rule to speak at any County Board meeting.
  - (3) Reservation for public addresses shall be granted on a first come, first served basis. Persons who have not previously addressed the Board shall have priority over other registrants.
  - (4) Announced candidates for public office may be granted the privilege to address the County Board during the term of the candidacy, provided, in the judgment of the Chairperson, subsections (5), (6), and (7) are strictly followed.
  - (5) Addresses shall be on subjects relevant to County government.
  - (6) Addresses shall be limited to five (5) minutes.
  - (7) No personal attacks shall be made on any individual nor shall disrespect for the County Board rules of procedure or its decorum be engaged in.

(8) The opportunity for public addresses to the Board is reserved to members of the public to express their opinions. Supervisors have the right and opportunity to express their opinions and speak at Committee meetings and during debate under Rule XIX.

The Chairperson shall be responsible for enforcing the conditions of public appearances.

- 2.22 RULE XXII CONFLICT OF INTEREST. If a Supervisor has a conflict of interest deemed illegal by state law or by the County Code of Ethics such that the Supervisor should abstain from voting on a matter in committee and/or at a Board meeting, such Supervisor must abstain from direct and indirect participation in all proceedings related to such matter. If a Supervisor concludes that no illegal conflict exists in a matter but intends to abstain from voting on such matter to avoid the appearance of a conflict, the Supervisor shall also abstain from direct and indirect participation in all proceedings related to such matter. A violation of this Rule shall constitute a violation of the Code of Ethics and shall be subject to Chapter 1 of this Code.
- 2.23 RULE XXIII COMPLAINTS. Complaints or concerns about Sheboygan County employees which come to the attention of a County Board member shall be referred to the County Administrator. The County Administrator may investigate the matter in such manner as he or she determines is appropriate or may refer the matter to another person or persons for investigation. If the complaint relates to the County Administrator, it shall be referred to and investigated or referred by the County Board Chairperson.

The County Administrator or other person to whom the investigation was delegated will report the outcome of the investigation to the County Board member or to the Liaison Committee if it is appropriate to do so. Anonymous complaints may be investigated if the interests of the County will be served by doing so, but there is no obligation to respond to an anonymous complaint.

History: Ord. 2 (2011/12); Ord. 1 (2012/13); Ord. 5 (2013/14); Ord. 14 (2013/14); Ord. 3 (2014/15); Ord. 7 (2014/15); Ord. 8 (2014/15); Ord. 9 (2015/16); Ord. 2 (2020/21);